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Canadian Inventory of Historic Building - Historical Building Report

) )

Building Information

Date of Construction: 1910
Architect: W M. Somervell

Builder: Fero-Concrete Construction Co. Ltd.
Craftsmen (List Type)

Name and occupation of original owner:william A. Bauer

Notable subsequent owners and reason identified:

Notable type of occupants:

Notable occupants and reason identified:

Building use: Administrative, Professional, Financial - office

Major building material: reinforced concrete

Alterations:
General Nature Date Architect Builder

Bauer Building 1910 - Pacific Building 1911-1950 Pemberton
Building 1950-date.

The building is typical of other Vancouver skyscrapers,
constructed in Vancouver, at the same time. The style may
have had its origins in Louis Sullivan's mid-western work
of the previous decade.

Comments:
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744 West Hastings Street Vancouver

Construction of Vancouver's eight-storey Pacific Building
began in 1909. Developer-realtor William A. Bauer had
initially planned to build a major hotel on his property

at Hastings and Howe, and by 18 February 1910 had completed
its foundations.l Designs for the building (to be called
the Bauer Hotel) had been provided by Vancouver's prolific

2

architectural firm of Parr and Fee. On 17 February 1910

Bauer was issued a second permit for his building project,
this time for a reinforced concrete office structure.3
On the following day, the Province noted that "the plans
of the owners of the property have been altered regarding
the class of building to be constructed, the foundation
now existing at the corner having been erected on plans
for a hotel block, while the revised plans contemplate

an office building."4

New designs for the office block
were prepared by W.M. Somervell, a prominent Seattle archi-
tect who had recently opened a branch office in Vancouver.5
The Pacific Building was probably Somervell's first work
in Vancouver, and without doubt was instrumental in establishing
his reputation there.
Somervell began his Vancouver practice in 1910 with

J.L. Putnam as office manager. By 1911 had become a full

partner in the firm and was credited as co-designer of
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most of the firm's work.6

Somervell had established his
Seattle reputation by providing plans for a number of
major private and public developments. Prominent among
his achievements were the Providence Hospital, and the
University and Green Lake branches of the Seattle Public
Library.

Somervell and Putnam proved to be popular among
Vancouver's business and corporate clients for buildings.
They provided designs to the Merchants Bank (two buildings),
Henry Birks and Sons, the B.C. Electric Company, and the
Union Bank. The elegant designs by Somervell and Putnam
contrast favourably with the plainer, less sophisticated
work of longer-established Vancouver architects such as
Whiteway, Parr and Fee Eveligh. Somervell and Putnam
did further work for Bauer a few years later, designing
at least two major Shaughnessey residences for him.7

Bauer had first intended to attach his own name to
his building, but the slightly earlier construction of
a Bower Building caused him to call his own the Pacific,
in order to avoid any confusion.8 Bauer's Pacific Building
was finished by January of 1912 (at a cost of $225,000),
by which time much of its office space had already filled.9
The structure's name was changed in 1950, when purchased
by Pemberton's, a major firm of Vancouver Stockbrokers.
Unlike many of the city's older commercial buildings,

the Pacific Building has been renovated rather than demolished,

and now meets contemporary needs.
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Bauer's Building was designed in much the same manner
as most Vancouver skyscrapers of its age. Like the Rogers
Building (10101001200470), the Birks Building (10101001200718),
and the Dominion Building (10101001900207), the Bauer Building
displays a tri-partite vertical division, extensive terra
cotta facings, and elegant neo-classical detail. The
style may well have had its origin in Louis Sullivan's
mid-wesfg;n work of a decade before (the Wainwright and
Guaranty Buildings, for example).

The Pacific Building is an eight storey structure
of reinforced concrete with brick and terra cotta facings.
Exterior decoration includes patterned brickwork and a
variety of terra cotta work (panels, pilasters, egg and
dart, dentil courses, and so forth). Three distinct vertical
stages are clearly evident: an elegant two-storey base,
a similarly embellished single storey below the cornice,
and a somewhat plainer series of five other floors between.

While the building has undergone several renovations,
considerable detail from 1910 remains. The structure's
entry hall still displays its original yellow marble wall
panels, contrasting marble baseboards, a floor of terrazzo,
and an elegant cast-iron staircase. Upper floor corridors
still retain their terrazzo floors and white marble base-
boards. Staircase treads are of terrazzo, supported by

cast iron stringers with scroll-bracket detail.
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Endnotes:

1 Province (Vancouver), 18 February 1910, p. 1l.

2 Ibid., 29 January 1910, p. 43.

3 City of Vancouver, Registry of Building Permits, 1910.

4 Province, op. cit.

5 City of Vancouver, Registry of Building Permits,
1912-20.

6 City Directory (Vancouver, 1911).

7 Point Grey Municipality, Registry of Building Permits,
1912-20.

8 Ross Lort, 01d Houses and Buildings in Vancouver,
Ms, 1960.

9 Progress and building Edition, Vancouver World, 1912.

Additional Source

City of Vancouver, Building Plan No. Al2.
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Historian: Warren Sommer

Date: June 1975

Geocode:10101001900846
City: Vancouver

Address: 846 West Hastings

Street
Building Name:

Ceperley
if 1 tant ’
¢ mpor aﬁo)unsfell & Co.,

Source of Tig&ti¥gg€g%

CIHB

Building Information

Date of Construction: 1921

Architect:G.L.T. Sharp & C.J. Thomson

Builder: Hodgson, King & Marble - general - Pacific Sheet Metal
" Works - roofing and sheet metal - William O'Neil & Co. Ltd.,
Craftsmen (List Type) ornamental iron work, V.W. Lewis - painting and
decorating

i n
Name and occupation of original owner: Hepry Tracey Cepel &y, bHuslnssama

and Francis William Rounsfell,
Notable subsequent owners and reason identified:Pusinessman

Notable type of occupants:

Notable occupants and reason identified:

Building use: Administrative, Professional, Financial - office

Major building material: brick with reinforced concrete
Alterations:

General Nature Date Architect Builder
Total interior renovation ?
Comments:

An elegant though diminutive commercial building located
in the heart of Vancouver's financial district.
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846 West Hastings Street | Vancouver

The Ceperley-Rounsefell Building, designed by architects
Sharp and Thompson, was begun in February, 1921 and completed
by 7 October of the same year at a cost of $50,000.l
Plans had been prepared a year earlier but "a start on
actual construction operations was deferred until such

time as the price of building materials showed some tendency

toward dropping."2

The new building was located in the

heart of Vancouver's lately established financial core,

next to the Credit Foncier Building. Despite its modest
height the building was seen as "another substantial monument
marking the westward spread of the city's business area."3
The establishment in the Hastings and Granville area of
prestigious business premises ensured the growth of that
area and the decline of the old commercial zone along
Cordova and Water streets.

Ceperley, Rounsefell & Co. were, in the early decades
of the 20th century, foremost in the ranks of Vancouver's
business establishment. As insurance, lending, real estate,
and financial agents they held a position of considerable
power and prestige. Henry Tracey Ceperley was the firm's
senior partner, born in New York in 1851. He occupied

a number of clerical and managerial positions in the United

States before coming to Vancouver in 1886, when he entered
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the insurance field with A.W. Ross.4

Francis William

Rounsefell joined the company two years later, having

come to Vancouver after banking experience in Brandon,

Manitoba. 1In 1891 A.W. Ross withdrew from the firm; in

1896 Rounsefell bought an interest in the company to become

a full partner. Both men augmented their business activities

with positions on the board of the Vancouver Milling and

Grain Co. Ltd. Ceperley was a member of the council of

the Board of Trade for several years.5 As members of

Vancouver's corporate aristocracy it was only fitting

that they should locate in the new business district and

build a structure worthy of their position.
Ceperley-Rounsefell chose the firm of Sharp and Thompson

as their architects. Charles J. Thompson had been born

and educated in London. He came to Canada in 1906 and

6 G.L. Thornton

became assistant chief arhitect for the CPR.
Sharp was also of English birth and training. He came
to Vancouver in 1908 and entered into partnership with
Thompson. In subsequent years the firm demonstrated competence
in the Gothic of St. James Church and the University of
British Columbia; the Tudor Revival of the R.S. Lennie
House; and the Georgian Revival of the Vancouver Club,
the Quadra Club and of the Ceperley-Rounsefell building.

The exterior of the Ceperley-Rounsefell building

appears much as it did in 1921. Red brick facings and

stone detail cover the building's reinforced concrete
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construction. The edifice is but 26 ft. in width and

120 ft. in depth. It is three bays wide, thereby permitting
"second floor" fenestration by an elegant Palladian window
(with balcony). Stone quoinings define the building's

width and a light ballustrade terminates the cornice.

Though its facade much resembles that of an English gentleman's
private club or a minor English bank, the architects took
considerable pains to ensure the use of British Columbian
materials: "even down to minor details...B.C. materials

7

are used." British Columbian materials included brick

and granite facings, cement, sand and gravel. Local firms
were given preference when the sub-contracts were let.8
The interior of the Ceperley-Rounsefell Building

has been altered since its 1921 erection. 1In February

of that year the Journal of Commerce and Building Record

reported that "the new structure is designed mainly along
recognized bank building lines, and will be one storey

in height with a large basement. In exterior appearance,
however, it will appear as if it contained two stories".9
The size of the vault in the building's basement required
the ground floor to be slightly raised above street level.
The building's ground floor interior was "finished in
marble and terrazzo in the most modern style and with
fixtures along the line of up-to-date banking premises“.10

The interior was originally partly lit by a large skylight,

with no intermediate storey between it and the ground
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floor, save for a small mezzanine at the rear. Today
the building has been totally renovated within and there
are now two full floors where once there was but one.
Although the structure is in good repair it is very
much threatened by redevelopment. Many of its smaller
neighbours are currently making way for massive, high

density, commercial structures.
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Endnotes:

1 City of Vancouver, Registry of Building Permits,
1921, No. 296.

2 Journal of Commerce and Building Record, (23 February
1921).

3 Ibid.

4 F.H. Howay and E.O0.S. Scholefield, British Columbia:
From the Earliest Times to the Present (Vancouver,
1914) vol. 3, pp. 30-33, 296-97.

5 Ibid.

6 Who's Who in British Columbia, S.M. Carter, ed.
(Vancouver, 1943).

7 Journal of Commerce and Building Record, (25 February
1921).

8 Ibid.

9 Ibid.

10 Ibid.
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Historian: Warren Sommer

Date: June 1975

Geocode: 10101002200121-125
City: Vancouver

Address: 121-125 East
Pender Street

Building Name: Wong Kung

(1f important) Har Tong

Source of Title Photo:
CIHB

Building Information

Date of Construction:1921

Architect:J,A. Radford and G.L. Southwell (or, Southall)
Builder: E, Wilson

Craftsmen (List Type)

Name and occupation of original owner: Wong Kung Har Tong (Society)
Notable subsequent owners and reason identified:

Notable type of occupants:

Ylotable occupants and reason identified:

Building use:Social & Recreational - club

Major building material: brick
Alterations:
Gencral Nature Date Architect Builder

Comments:A representative example of the distinctive recessed-
balcony buildings erected within Vancouver's chinese district
between 1900 and the early 1920s.
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121-125 East Pender Street Vancouver

The Wong Kung Har Tong (Society) Building, at 121-125

East Pender Street, was built in 1921 at a cost of $14,000
as a major alteration of pre-existing buildings. The
1921 "architects" were J.A. Radford and G.L. Southwell.l

While the Vancouver Registry of Building Permits lists

Radford and Southwell (Southall in the 1921 Registry)
under the column "architects", it is most unlikely that
they were either trained or licensed in that profession.2

Neither Radford nor Southwell was listed in the City Directory
3

as an architect. Their names do not appear in the member-

4

ship lists of the RAIC. Southwell was, in fact, only

a draughtmans, although the Registry of Building Permits

for 1922-23 attributes three other buildings to him as

an "architect".6

It was not unusual in the early years
of the twentieth century for contractors to act as their
own architects, but the listing of a draughtsman as an
architect is a rarer event.

The structure was designed for the Wong Kung Har
Tong, "tong" meaning "society". In Vancouver a tong is
an association of people of the same surname, without
reference to extremely close kin relationships. The Wongs,
Lees, Mahs, and many other Chinese clans each have their
own tongs. These societies were formed in the city late
in the nineteenth century, as a continuation of tradition

and as a means for securing protection and solidarity

in the midst of an alien and often hostile culture.”
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The Wong Kung Har Tong Building is located in the
heart of the city's traditional Chinatown. Late nineteenth
century anti-Oriental sentiment forced the city's Chinese
residents to locate in what was then the least desirable
quarter of the city, an area for several years co-occupied
with members of the lower strata of society. The district
survives to the present as a focus of Chinese cultural
and commercial activity. It is in Vancouver's Chinatown,
centred along Pender and Main streets, that the community's
political, kin, athletic, and other social organizations
have located. Many occupy buildings reminiscent of traditional
Cantonese urban architecture, although the majority of
such local designs were in fact prepared by non-oriental
architects.

The Wong Kung Har Tong Building is representative
of the distinctive recessed-balconied structures erected
for members of the Chinese Community after the turn of
the century include the Chinese Freemason's Building
c. 1901), the Yue Shan Society Building (1920), the Chinese
Benevolent Society Building (1909), and the Chin Wing
Chum Society Building (1925). The style is currently
enjoying a revival, no doubt as a result of the area's
popularity as a tourist attraction, with recent examples

being erected at 116 and 178 East Pender.
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The Wong Kung Har Tong Building rises through three
storeys, its floors being connected by a single long stairway
from the street. Recessed balconies, the single-most
distinctive feature of the style, are found at the second
and third floor levels. An elaborate parapet of urns
with pediment creates a picturesque skyline above the
buidling's dentil course. The structure is largely of
brick, three bays in width, with original shiplap cladding
surviving in the balconies' facades. Supporting piers
are of painted brick, through steel reinforcing may be
hidden within.

Though its facade is somewhat imposing, the building's
interior is extremely modest. Upper floor rooms are finished
in lathe and plaster, with plain fir casings. Original
painted wood wainscotting remains in the building's stairway.
An interesting stained glass window with Chinese motifs
fills the transom above the stairway entrance. Ground
floor retail space has been modernized and renovated for
the particular needs of successive tenants.

The building is in good condition and is protected

by both municipal and provincial preservation orders.
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Endnotes:

1l Journal of Commerce and Building Record, (7 September
1921).

2 City of Vancouver, Registry of Building Permits,

1921, No. 1709.

3 Vancouver City Directory (Vancouver, 1921).

4 RAIC Journal, 1920s.

5 Vancouver City Directory, op. cit.

6 City of Vancouver, Registry of Building Permits,
1922-23.

7 Quene Yip. Vancouver Chinatown; golden jubilee,

1886-1936 (Vancouver, 1936).
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Historian: Edward Mills

Date: October 1973

Geocode:10101002200592
City: vancouver

Address: 59 East Pender

Street
Building Name:

(if important) (original)

Lord Strathcona School
Source of Title Photo:

CIHB
Building Information
Date of Construction: 1891
Architect: Thomas Hooper
Builder:
Craftsmen (List Type)
Name and occupation of original owner:
Notable subsequent owners and reason identified:
Notable type of occupants:
YNotable occupants and reason identified:
Building use: Educational-school
Major building material:
Alterations:
General N éqre, Date . . Architect Builder
First aé 1tion 1897 William Blackmore E. Cook
Second addition 1915-1927 C.L. Morgan
Gym and auditorium 1929-30
Major fire damage c. 1975

Comments: Stylistically, the school resembles other schools
being erected in the city at this time, a fact perhaps due to

the influence of G.W. Grant, co-ordinating architect and designer
of the Dawson School.

East End School
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592 East Pender Street Vancouver

The first East End School was begun in 1890 and completed

in the following year1 at a cost of $20,5002

as part of
the city's extensive building program intended to meet
the growing population. It was among the earlier major
designs of Thomas Hooper, a prominent architect with practices
in both Vancouver and Victoria. Within a few years the
original eight room building proved too small, and a separate
annex containing twelve rooms was commissioned. The architect
of this structure was William Blackmore, who had been practic-
ing in the city since 1887. Among his other notable designs
were the Flack Block, 163 West Hastings Street (1899)
and the Hunter Block, 315 West Hastings (1899). Born
in Yorkshire, England in 1822, Blackmore had emigrated
to Canada, presumably during the early 1880s, and practised
briefly in Winnipeg before settling in Vancouver. He
died in 1904.3

The 1897 school annex was initially conceived as
a two-storey eight-room structure but was expanded to
twelve rooms by heightening the attic section. This is
suppor ted by the fact that the original heating system
served the first two floors only; the attic rooms were
heated by individual stoves. The basement and door and

window arches were dual stoves. The basement and door






